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FEBRUARY 23, 2016 

  

8:30 A.M. YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY Agenda and background 

9:30 A.M. YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS - Welcome to the Yuba County Board of Supervisors meeting.  As a 

courtesy to others, please turn off cell phones, pagers, or other electronic devices, which might disrupt the meeting. All 

items on the agenda other than Correspondence and Board and Staff Members Reports are considered items for which 

the Board may take action.  The public will be given opportunity to comment on action items on the agenda when the item 

is heard. 

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Led by Supervisor Nicoletti 

II. ROLL CALL - Supervisors Vasquez, Nicoletti, Griego, Abe, Fletcher 

III. CONSENT AGENDA: All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and can be 

enacted in one motion. 

A. Administrative Services 

1. (041-0216) Adopt resolution declaring 2005 Ford F-250 (#14176) as surplus with a residual value of $2,149.90 

and authorize Purchasing Agent to sell vehicle to Bi-County Ambulance for residual amount.    

B. Board of Supervisors 

1. (042-0216) Adopt resolution supporting inclusion of Pacific Coast Maritime Routes Study, including Feather, 

Yuba, and Bear Rivers, in eighth grade United States history curriculum. 

C. Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

1. (043-0216) Approve meeting minutes of February 9, 2016. 

D. County Administrator 

1. (044-0216) Approve amendment to Cascade Software Systems Contract and authorize Chair to execute. 

E. Sheriff/Administrative Services 

1. (046-0216) Approve initial phase of Vanir Construction Management agreement for services on SB863 Yuba 

County Jail expansion project. 

F. Health and Human Services 

1. (045-0216) Adopt resolution authorizing Director of Health and Human Services to execute new/ongoing 

contracts for fiscal year 2016/17 or multi-years and authorizing Chair to accept funds for stated periods. 

IV. SPECIAL PRESENTATION   

http://www.co.yuba.ca.us/
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A. (047-0216) Present proclamation recognizing Martin Griffin for dedicated services to Yuba County. (No 

background material) 

V. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: Any person may speak about any subject of concern provided it is within the 

jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors and is not already on today's agenda.  The total amount of time allotted 

for receiving such public communication shall be limited to a total of 15 minutes and each individual or group will 

be limited to no more than 5 minutes.  Prior to this time speakers are requested to fill out a "Request to Speak" 

card and submit it to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors. Please note:  No Board action can be taken on 

comments made under this heading. 

VI. COUNTY DEPARTMENTS   

A. Administrative Services 

1. (048-0216) Approve two acquisition agreements for purchase of 520 and 683 square feet from Mid Valley 

Recovery and Yuba Street Ventures, respectively, for new Sheriff Facility located at 720 Yuba Street, authorize 

Chair to execute, and authorize Chair to execute the Tentative Lot Line Adjustment Application as property 

owner three. (Ten minute estimate) 

B. Auditor/Controller 

1. (049-0216) Approve repayment agreement between County and City of Marysville for fees owed due to State 

Audit Traffic Fees, authorize Chair to execute, and cancel the repayment agreement for property tax 

administration fee considering the obligation paid in full. (Ten minute estimate). 

C. Community Development and Services 

1. (050-0216) Direct staff to initiate Proposition 218 process to propose increase assessment for County Service 

Area No.14 (Camp Far West) and set a public hearing date for April 26, 2016 to consider adjustment and 

tabulate ballots. (Ten minute estimate). 

D. County Administrator/Health and Human Services 

1. (051-0216) Receive report on current efforts to address homeless issues in Yuba County and provide direction 

as appropriate. (Estimate twenty minutes). 

E. County Administrator 

1. (052-0216) Receive Second Quarter Financial Report; and Authorize midyear budget transfers in the total 

amount of $787,549 which includes Capital Outlay Funds in the amount of $848,562 and General Contingency 

Funds in the amount of $212,236;and Approve Personnel requests related to Health and Human Services, 

Community Development and Services, and Public Guardian; and Approve Fixed Assets request in the amount 

of $186,500 from Health and Human Services. (Thirty minute estimate) 

VII. ORDINANCES AND PUBLIC HEARINGS: If you challenge in court the action or decision of the Yuba County 

Board of Supervisors regarding a zoning, planning, land use or environmental protection matter made at any 

public hearing described in this notice, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised 

at such public hearing, or in written correspondence delivered to the Yuba County Board of Supervisors at, or 

prior to, such public hearing and such public comments will be limited to three minutes per individual or group. 

A. (053-0216) Public Hearing - Hold public hearing, count ballots to consider proposed change to assessment for 

County Service Area No. 59, and absent a majority vote protest, adopt resolution establishing new assessment 

effective July 1, 2016 for maintenance of road and drainage structures. (Fifteen minute estimate) 

VIII. CORRESPONDENCE: The Board may direct any item of informational correspondence to a department head 

for appropriate action. 

A. (054-0216) Notice from California Regional Water Quality Control Board regarding meeting February 18, 2016, for 

Olivehurst Public Utility District Wastewater Treatment Facility consideration of NPDES Permit Renewal. 
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B. (055-0216) Notice from California American Lung Association stating State of Tobacco Control report release date 

February 3, 2016. 

C. (056-0216) Notice from California Governor's Office of Emergency Services declaring Yuba County a contiguous 

disaster area, resulting from economic impacts delaying commercial Dungeness Crab Season and closure of 

commercial Rock Crab Fishery beginning November 6, 2016 and continuing. 

D. (057-0216) Notice from Sutter-Yuba Mosquito and Vector Control District regarding notification of Public Health 

Pesticide Application to waters for mosquito control to prevent mosquito-borne diseases.  

E. (058-0216) Independent audit report for Yuba County Water Agency for periods ending June 30, 2014 and 2015. 

IX. BOARD AND STAFF MEMBERS’ REPORTS: This time is provided to allow Board and staff members to report 

on activities or to raise issues for placement on future agendas. 

X. CLOSED SESSION  

A.  Pending litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(4) - One Case 

B. 2:00 P.M. Personnel pursuant to Government Code §54957(b)(1) – Public Appointment/Agricultural Commissioner 

Interviews 

XI. ADJOURN  

Land Use & Public Works Committee - (Supervisors Griego and Abe - Alternate Supervisor Nicoletti)  -  

A. (059-0216) Consider resolution approving closure of McGanney Lane at SR 20 - Community and Development 

Services. (Ten minute estimate) 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the meeting room is wheelchair accessible and disabled parking is available. If you have a 

disability and need disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board's office at (530) 

749-7510 or (530) 749-7353 (fax).  Requests must be made two full business days before the start of the meeting. To place an item on the agenda, contact 

the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
Chairman of the Board, General Manager 
  and Members of the Board of Directors  
Yuba County Water Agency 
Marysville, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Yuba County Water Agency (the Agency), a 
component unit of the County of Yuba, California, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial 
statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for 
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Yuba County Water Agency as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the respective change in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s 
Office and state regulations governing special districts.  

 
 Davis W. Hammon, Jr., CPA 

 (1924-1989) 
 

 Stephen B. Norman, CPA • PFS 
 Stephen J. Herr, CPA 
James L. Duckett, CPA 

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
2080 Myers Street, Suite 3, Oroville, CA  95966-5341    (530) 533-3392    FAX (530) 533-2714 
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Emphasis of Matter 

As disclosed in Notes 1(E) and 9 in the accompanying notes to financial statements, the Agency has made a 
change in its accounting principles to implement the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement No 71, Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of Statement 
No.68.  The changes were effective as of July 1, 2014. The amounts presented for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2014, were not restated, and our opinions were not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the supplementary information on pages 6 through 10 and on pages 42 through 
44 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Yuba County Water Agency’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other 
supplementary information on pages 46 through 47 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The other supplementary information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements. The other supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 
2015, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

Davis Hammon & Co. 
December 22, 2015 
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YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY 
 
The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report 
information about the Agency’s activities in a way that will help the reader determine if the Agency, as a whole, 
is better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. In addition, the reader will need to consider other 
non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and new or changed government legislation. 
 
NET POSITION 
 

As can be seen in Table 1 below, Net Position decreased by $1.31 million to a balance of $212.73 million in FY 
2014-15, down slightly from the $214.04 million balance in FY 2013-14. This decrease of less than 1% is the 
result of a $21.87 million increase is Assets balanced against a $3.39 net increase in Pension Liability (GASB 68), 
a $2.0 million increase to Accounts Payable, and a $17.79 increase in Deferred Inflows (water transfer deferred 
income). 
 

TABLE 1 
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 
Dollar Percent 

2015 2014 Change Change 

  ASSETS: 
   Current assets  $    58,402,056 $      41,499,399  $   16,902,657  40.73% 
   Restricted assets                       -                      -                        -  -  

   Capital assets, net      188,229,069     183,279,023          4,950,046  2.70% 
   Other assets         5,419,995                  5,406,857               13,138  0.24% 

  TOTAL ASSETS    252,051,120     230,185,279        21,865,841  9.50% 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS: 
   CalPERS pension contributions             548,810                        -              548,810  -  

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS            548,810                        -             548,810  -  

    LIABILITIES: 
   Current liabilities          5,749,036          3,743,764           2,005,272  53.56% 
   Long-term pension liability - CalPERS            2,942,238                        -           2,942,238  -  

TOTAL LIABILITIES         8,691,274          3,743,764          4,947,510  132.15% 

DEFERRED INFLOWS: 

   Deferred Income        30,175,376        12,395,079         17,780,297  143.45% 
   CalPERS pension expense             997,337                        -              997,337  -  

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS       31,172,713        12,395,079          18,777,634  151.49% 

NET POSITION: 
   Investment in capital assets,      188,229,069      183,279,023           4,950,046  2.70% 
   Unrestricted        24,506,874        30,767,413          (6,260,539) -20.35% 

TOTAL NET POSITION  $ 212,735,943  $ 214,046,436    $   (1,310,493) -0.61% 

(058-0216) Indep... - 9 of 53



YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

Page 7 

REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
While the Statements of Net Position shows the changes in financial position, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position provides answers concerning the nature and source of these changes. As shown in Table 2 below, 
Total Revenues decreased $1.17 million due primarily to decreases in grant income, interest income and water sales 
(continued dry conditions). The remaining decrease can be attributed to a small increase in Total Expenses related to ongoing 
Power Systems maintenance projects offset by a Capital Contribution (donation of several gauging stations by USGS). These 
shifts all combined for a Net Position decrease of $1.3 million. 
 

TABLE 2 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 

Dollar Percent 
2015 2014 Change Change 

Sales of electrical energy  $    14,763,601   $    14,832,028  $       (68,427) -0.46% 
Water sales          9,588,078         10,107,474            (519,396) -5.14% 

   TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES       24,351,679        24,939,502           (587,823) -2.36% 
         
Non-operating revenues          2,296,812           2,878,890   $        (582,078) -20.22% 
Non-Recurring Gain - 
    Early extinguishment of debt                       -                        -                        -                -  

   TOTAL REVENUES       26,648,491        27,818,392        (1,169,901) -4.21% 
 
EXPENSES: 
Depreciation expense          4,875,299           4,485,971              389,328  8.68% 
Operating expense, excluding 
depreciation expense        12,923,905         11,102,243           1,821,662  16.41% 
Non-operating expense          6,807,259           8,530,021        (1,722,762) -20.20% 

     TOTAL EXPENSES       24,606,463        24,118,235             488,228  2.02% 

Capital Contribution – Stream Gauges             230,265                        -              230,265  -  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION         2,272,293          3,700,157          (1,427,864) -38.59% 

Net assets, July 1      214,046,436       210,346,279           3,700,157  1.76% 
Effect of change in accounting principle  (3,582,786)                       -     (3,582,786) 100.00% 

NET POSITION, JUNE 30  $ 212,735,943   $ 214,046,436   $   (1,310,493) -0.61% 
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The following chart illustrates the revenues of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
 

 
 
 
The following chart illustrates the expenses of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
As can be seen in Table 3 below, the Agency’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $4.95 million to 
$188.22 million. Construction in Progress reached over $38 million in the course of 2014-15; just over $4 million in 
completed projects moved from CIP to Depreciable Capital Assets including an upgraded Microwave Communications 
System, Colgate Fire Suppression System, Colgate Septic System, and the New Bullards Bar (NBB) Dam Grout Project.  
Major projects still underway include FERC Relicensing ($26.9M), NBB Dam Drain Cleaning ($1M), Colgate 24/7 Control 
Room ($1.5M), and Colgate Unit 1 ($1M), and Unit 2 ($1.3M) 230kV transformer replacements. Also of note is the sale of 
the Deadwood Power Project (book value $2.4M) in October 2014. A summary of the Agency’s capital assets are as follows: 
 

TABLE 3 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 
Dollar Percent 

2015 2014 Change Change 

Non-depreciable capital assets: 
Land and water rights  $      2,929,275   $       2,929,275   $                  -  0.00% 
Canal acquisitions          4,605,454            4,605,454                       -  0.00% 
Construction-in-process        34,384,832            28,979,982           5,404,850    18.65% 

       41,919,561          36,514,711         5,404,850  14.80% 
Depreciable capital assets, net: 

Utility plant and equipment      237,385,228        235,357,830         2,027,398  0.86% 
Non-utility property, at cost        23,523,166          22,968,865            554,301  2.41% 

     260,908,394        258,326,695         2,581,699  1.00% 

Less: Accumulated depreciation     (114,598,886)     (111,562,383)       (3,036,503) 2.72% 

NET CAPITAL ASSETS   $    188,229,069   $    183,279,023   $    4,950,046  2.70% 

 
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
The Yuba County Water Agency is continuing to support work on several flood mitigation projects with the main effort 
focused on the Marysville levee improvements and continued improvement of the Forecasted Coordinated Operations 
program. Work continues on the grant funded Groundwater Model and we have made significant progress on an Agriculture 
Water Management Plan and irrigation water metering and measurement plan to be in compliance with SBX7-7.  We have 
completed the update of our Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP) as required by Proposition 84, as well as 
the development of an Integrated Water Management Decision Support System.  The Agency plans to petition DWR to 
become a groundwater sustainability agency for the North Yuba and South Yuba groundwater sub-basins in accordance with 
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014.  Late in the fiscal year YCWA partnered on a $3 million Corps of 
Engineers Ecosystem Restoration Study for the Yuba River and signed a term sheet for a fish passage program on the Yuba 
River.   
 
The 50 year Power Purchase Agreement with Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), that financed the construction of 
the Yuba River Development Project, ends April 30, 2016.  The Agency has decided to contract the California Independent 
Operator Scheduling Coordinator work for the sale of electricity from the Colgate and Narrows 2 Powerhouses with Shell 
Energy of North America beginning May 1, 2016.  Toward this end, significant investment has been made into manpower 
and facilities to be able to independently operate the facilities from PG&E.  Among these investments are a state-of-the-art 
Control Room (see cover photo) and staff to operate 24/7, upgraded computer, operating, communications systems and the 
new Microsoft Dynamics GP Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software.  Also, major work is being performed to replace 
worn out equipment as part of the Power Purchase Agreement with PG&E and this includes replacement of two new 230KV 
transformers at the Colgate Powerhouse along with an upgraded Computerized Maintenance Management System.   
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The Agency has joined with Yuba County to provide the local share ($46.6 million), through a $78 million bond sale backed 
by impact fees, for a $138 million Prop 1E Levee Improvement Grant. Financing was completed in September 2008; the 
Three Rivers Levee Improvement Authority has constructed the Feather River Setback Levee and other levee improvements 
within Reclamation District 784’s territory. One more phase of work is needed by TRLIA to improve the level of protection 
to a 200 year level.  
 
The Lower Yuba Accord was settled and new Water Rights Order #2008-0014 was issued in 2008, securing long term water 
transfer ability through 2025.   Dry water conditions created water transfers of 104,663 acre-feet in 2014 and a similar 
amount is expected in 2015 due to continued dry conditions.  In addition, the Agency facilitated a Member Unit Ground 
Water Substitution transfer for 56,984 acre feet. The Accord contained an opener on surface transfer water pricing for water 
transfers starting in 2016 for a 5 year period.  Agreement on a new pricing schedule was reached which roughly doubled the 
price and provides a $20 million upfront payment.  The YCWA board and the buyers executed the agreement in December, 
2014. 
 
The Agency was granted a 50 year license to operate the Yuba River Project for generation of electricity; Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) License #2246 expires on April 30, 2016.  HDR Engineering, Inc. has been retained to lead 
the Agency through the 8-year FERC relicensing effort. A cash reserve sufficient to cover anticipated costs has been 
established. The Final License Application was filed with FERC on April 28, 2014.  Although the bulk of the relicensing 
costs have been expended, we anticipate another $2 million in costs in fiscal 2015-16 for delayed studies and environmental 
work. 
  
The Agency has a legal obligation to move forward on a new fish screen for the South Canal Diversion to replace the existing 
screen as part of a lawsuit settlement. The agreements with the South Member Units call for them to pay the entire cost of a 
new screen but require the Agency to offer financing. YCWA is proceeding with a collaborative effort with the South 
Member Units to select a suitable project. Preliminary study results indication there may be a screen option in the $8 million 
range. Sound fiscal management and finalization of the Lower Yuba River Accord have had a positive effect on the Agency’s 
reserves which have achieved levels sufficient to satisfy long term operations and capital project needs, such as this. 
 
CONTACTING THE AGENCY’S DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the 
Agency’s finances and to demonstrate the Agency’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact the Yuba County Water Agency, Department of Financial Services at 
1220 F Street, Marysville, CA  95901. 
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Exhibit 1

ASSETS 2015 2014

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 56,158,805$    39,193,760$    
Receivables

Accounts receivable             571,323          241,053          
Taxes and interest receivable 91,453            150,865          

Due from other governments 931,887          983,238          
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 648,588          930,483          

Total Current Assets 58,402,056     41,499,399     

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets 41,919,561     36,514,711     
Depreciable capital assets, net 146,309,508    146,764,312    

Capital Assets, Net 188,229,069    183,279,023    

Other Assets:
Loans receivable from other governmental entities 5,419,995       5,406,857       

Total Assets 252,051,120    230,185,279    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CalPERS pension contributions 548,810          -                 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 548,810          -                 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,961,008       2,943,126       
Wages payable 170,141          124,915
Accrued compensated absences 734,558          675,723
Due to other governments 348,362          -                 
Deposit - Wheatland Water District 534,967          -                   

Total Current Liabilities 5,749,036       3,743,764         
Long-Term Liabilities:

Net pension liability - CalPERS 2,942,238       -                 

Total Long-Term Liabilties 2,942,238       -                 

Total Liabilities 8,691,274       3,743,764       
  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred income 30,175,376     12,395,079
CalPERS pension expense 997,337          -                 

Total Deferred Inflows Of Resources 31,172,713 12,395,079

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 188,229,069    183,279,023
Unrestricted 24,506,874     30,767,413

Total Net Position 212,735,943$  214,046,436$  

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015 and 2014
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Exhibit 2

2015 2014
Operating Revenues:

Sale of electrical energy 14,763,601$     14,832,028$     
Water sales 9,588,078        10,107,474

Total Operating Revenues 24,351,679      24,939,502      

Operating Expenses:
Hydropower generation 2,713,762        3,047,163        
Administration and general 6,584,941        5,799,624        
Maintenance 3,625,202        2,255,456        
Depreciation and amortization 4,875,299        4,485,971        

Total Operating Expenses 17,799,204      15,588,214      

Net Income From Operations 6,552,475        9,351,288        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets (269,501)          12,408             
Property taxes 430,326           400,668           
Interest income 457,997           750,992           
Rental income 24,000             24,000             
Grants and reimbursements 1,113,077        1,405,413        
Miscellaneous income (expense) 8,763              5,000              
Recreation and camping fees 262,649           280,409           
General administration (3,795,033)       (3,790,874)       
Recreation and irrigation (1,428,697)       (1,534,037)       
Special projects expense (1,314,028)       (3,205,110)       

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (4,510,447)       (5,651,131)       

Income (loss) before capital contribution 2,042,028        3,700,157        

Capital Contribution:
Capital contribution - stream gauges 230,265           -                  

Total Capital Contribution 230,265           -                  

Change in Net Position 2,272,293        3,700,157        

Net Position, July 1 214,046,436     210,346,279     
Effect of change in accounting principle (3,582,786)       -                  

Net Position, July 1 - As Restated 210,463,650     -                  

Net Position, June 30 212,735,943$   214,046,436$   

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
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Page 1 of 2

2015 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from customers 42,685,035$ 20,840,971$ 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (3,966,127)    (2,947,442)    
Cash payments for employee wages and benefits (7,105,413)    (7,235,194)    

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 31,613,495   10,658,335   

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Payments on loans receivable 176,053       140,875       
Loans made to other agencies (189,191)      (308,491)      
Net pension liability (640,548)      
Rents received 24,000         24,000         
Grants and reimbursements 1,164,428     1,572,524     
Tax assessment 430,326       400,668       
Miscellaneous income (expense) 8,763           5,000           
Recreation and camping fees 262,649       280,409       
General administration expenses (3,795,033)    (3,790,874)    
Recreation and other expenses (1,428,697)    (1,534,037)    
Special program expenses (1,314,028)    (3,205,110)      

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Noncapital Financing Activities (5,301,278)    (6,415,036)    

Cash Flows From Capital And Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (403,433)      (347,988)      
Costs incurred on construction in progress projects (9,787,638)    (9,533,096)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Capital and Related
Financing Activities (10,191,071)  (9,881,084)    

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment 326,490       13,174         
Interest received 517,409       697,049       

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities 843,899       710,223       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 16,965,045   (4,927,562)    

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 39,193,760   44,121,322   

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 56,158,805$ 39,193,760$ 

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents 56,158,805$ 39,193,760$ 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 56,158,805$ 39,193,760$ 

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
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Exhibit 3

Page 2 of 2

2015 2014

Reconciliation of Net Income from Operations to Net Cash
Provided (Used) By Operating Activities:

Net income from operations 6,552,475$   9,351,288$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,875,299    4,485,971    
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (330,270)      96,237         
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 281,895       319,670       
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities 1,017,882    543,384       
Increase (decrease) in wages and benefits payable 493,753       31,566         
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated 

absences 58,835         24,987         
Increase (decrease) in deferred income 17,780,297   (4,194,768)   
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 348,362       
Increase (decrease) in deposit - Wheatland WD 534,967       

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 31,613,495$ 10,658,335$ 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

  Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Change in fair value of investments (14,798)$      198,833$     

Capital contribution - stream gauges 230,265$     

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Established in 1959 by an act of the California State Legislature and headquartered in historic 
Marysville, California, Yuba County Water Agency (Agency) is a public agency governed by a 
seven member Board of Directors comprised of the five members of the Yuba County Board of 
Supervisors and two members elected at large. The primary functions of the Agency are 
development and sale of hydroelectric power, flood control, fisheries enhancement, recreation, 
conservation, storage of water, and wholesale of water to member districts.  
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 

 
The Agency’s financial statements include all financial transactions for which the Agency is 
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a majority of a 
component unit’s board and either the ability to impose the will of the Agency or the 
possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial 
burden on the Agency. Based on these criteria, the Agency has determined that there are 
no component units that come under the criteria for inclusion. However, the Agency is a 
component unit of the County of Yuba, California. As a result, the financial activities of the 
Agency are included in the annual financial report of the County of Yuba which is available 
at the Auditor-Controller’s office located at 915 8th Street, Suite 105, Marysville, California 
95901. 
 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The Agency’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of timing of the 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year they are levied. 
Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on 
July 1, and are payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10. The County of 
Yuba bills and collects property taxes and remits them to the Agency in installments during 
the year. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements, imposed by the provider, have been met. 

 
The financial activities of the Agency are accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for operations which are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the 
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the public on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

 
To enhance accountability, the Agency’s enterprise fund consists of the following units: 
 

 General Fund   Hydroelectric Utility Fund 
 Operation and Maintenance Fund  General Fund Power Systems Fund 
 General Fund Hydro Fund  Health RA Fund 

 
Inter-unit balances have been eliminated from the statement of net position amounts. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 
 
The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from 
the ongoing principal operations of the Agency. Operating revenues consist primarily of 
charges for services. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and 
expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities and result from 
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
The Agency’s financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments. The Agency has also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62 
with respect to financial reporting guidance. 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 
 

1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Agency includes all cash accounts, which are 
not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties, and all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with a maturity of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. 
 
See Note 2 for additional information about the Agency’s cash and investments. 
 

2) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts   
An allowance for doubtful accounts has not been provided because, in the opinion of 
management, receivable balances are fully collectible. 

 
3) Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid expenses. 

 
4) Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are 
reported in the Agency’s financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Agency 
as assets with an initial individual cost of $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess 
of one year. 
 
Capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at 
estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Contributed capital assets 
are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset, 
or materially extend asset lives, are not capitalized. 
 
The cost of assets sold or retired is eliminated from the property and equipment 
accounts with any gain or loss recorded. Fully depreciated assets remain in the 
accounts until such assets are no longer in service. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 

 
4) Capital Assets (Continued) 

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
 

Description 
 Estimated  

Life 
   

Facilities and improvements  25 - 50 years 
Buildings and structures  40 years 
Equipment and furniture  2 - 10 years 

 
Depreciation expense, by function, was as follows: 
 

2015 2014

Hydraulic production 3,436,351$    2,882,660$    
Electric plant acquisition 97,464          97,464          
Transmission equipment 14,173          13,365          
General plant 673,500        562,009        
Intangible assets -               5,249            
Recreation facilities 82,984          82,983          
Irrigation canals 570,827        842,241        

Total 4,875,299$    4,485,971$    

 

Expenses incurred for construction projects and major repairs and betterments are 
accumulated and, when projects are complete, are capitalized and subsequently 
depreciated over the project’s estimated useful life. The Agency did not incur any 
construction period interest for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 or 2014. 
 

5) Compensated Absences 
Employees are paid for 100% of their accumulated vacation upon retirement or other 
termination. In addition, 45% of the sick leave benefits are paid to employees with ten 
or more years of service upon retirement or termination up to a maximum accrual of 
1,040 hours. The Agency has accrued a liability for vacation and sick leave, which has 
been earned, but not taken, by Agency employees. This liability has been recorded in 
accompanying financial statements. 
 

6) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense) until then. See also Note 9 for further explanation of 
the composition of the Deferred Outflows of Resources amount(s). 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources until that time. See also Notes 8 and 9 for further explanation of the 
composition of the Deferred Inflows of Resources amounts(s). 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 
 

7) Net Position 
 
Restricted: 
Restricted net assets consists of constraints placed on net position use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grants, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restrictions include a 
restriction for debt service as required by related debt covenants and the balance of 
amounts received for debt service and operations and maintenance of the hydroelectric 
facility. 
 
Unrestricted: 
Designations of unrestricted net position are imposed by the Board of Directors to reflect 
future spending plans or concerns about the availability of future resources. Designations 
may be modified, amended, or removed by Board action. The designations included: 

 
2015 2014

Capital facilities - recreation 56,054$        47,369$        
Ground water 589,490        492,585        
Relicensing 1,132,788     1,358,579     
Fishery enhancement 1,063,724     1,456,405     
Project development 13,459,826    13,753,250    
Future operations & administration 8,097,654     13,262,575    
River management 107,338        396,650        

Subtotal - Designated 24,506,874    30,767,413    

Undesignated -               -               

Total Unrestricted Net Position 24,506,874$  30,767,413$  

 

 Designated for Capital Facilities - Recreation – to segregate a portion of net assets for 
fees collected for capital facilities projects in the recreation area. 

 Designated for Ground Water – to segregate a portion of net assets for the monitoring 
of ground water. 

 Designated for Relicensing – to segregate a portion of net assets designated for the 
future relicensing costs for the Agency. 

 Designated for Fishery Enhancement – to segregate a portion of net assets designated 
for fish monitoring and habitat improvements. 

 Designated for Project Development – to segregate a portion of net assets designated 
for water resources and flood control related studies and capital projects. 

 Designated for Future Operations & Administration – to segregate a portion of net 
assets designated for future general and administrative operations. 

 Designated for River Management – to segregate a portion of net assets designated 
for Accord River Management Team directed projects. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 
 

8) Use of Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statement in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

D. Pension 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Agency’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions 
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

   
E. New Accounting Pronouncements 

Effective July 1, 2014, the Agency has implemented the provisions contained in the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. 
Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pension plans to recognize 
their long-term obligation for pension benefits. Statement No. 68 also requires additional 
disclosures and required supplemental information. The implementation of this GASB statement 
required an adjustment to beginning net position of $3,582,786, decreasing beginning net 
position from $214,046,436 to $210,463,650. The Agency has not restated the amounts for the 
year ended June 30, 2014, and earlier years, as necessary adjustments as a result of 
Statement No. 68 could not be reasonably determined. 
 
 

NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, at fair value, consisted of the following: 
 

2015 2014
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 525$            525$            
Deposits in financial institutions 3,703,870     2,199,590     
Cash and investments with county treasurer 52,454,410   36,993,645   

Total unrestricted 56,158,805   39,193,760   

Total cash and investments 56,158,805$ 39,193,760$ 

Fiscal year ended June 30,

 
 

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits 
or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the Agency’s deposits was $3,703,870, and the 
balances in financial institutions were $3,781,690. Of the balances in financial institutions, 
$520,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $3,261,690 was collateralized as 
required by state law (Government Code §53630) by the pledging financial institution with 
assets held in a common pool for the Agency and other governmental agencies. State law 
requires that the market value of the common pool of collateral be equal to or greater than 
110% of all public deposits with the pledging financial institution if governmental securities are 
used, or 150% if mortgages are used, as collateral. The collateral is not held by or in the name 
of the Agency.  
 
At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the Agency’s deposits was $2,199,590, and the 
balances in financial institutions were $2,417,024. Of the balances in financial institutions, 
$285,324 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $2,131,700 was collateralized as 
described above. 
 
The Agency’s investments in mutual funds and the Yuba County Treasurer are stated at fair 
value. The Agency maintains a significant portion of its cash in Yuba County’s cash and 
investment pool. Yuba County apportions interest and changes in fair value to the Agency’s 
funds quarterly based upon average cash balances. Investments held in the County’s cash and 
investment pool are available on demand to the Agency and are stated at fair value. 
Information regarding categorization of investments can be found in the Yuba County’s financial 
statement. The Yuba County cash and investment pool is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission as an investment company and is in accordance with the applicable 
laws and regulations of the State of California. The fair value of the Agency’s position in the 
pool is the same as the value of its pool shares. The County has not provided or obtained any 
legally binding guarantees to support the value of the accounts. 
 
Investment policy: Pursuant to Board Resolutions 2015-07 and 2014-07, the Agency reaffirmed 
the County of Yuba, California’s investment policy as the Agency’s policy. Under the County’s 
policy, the permissible investments for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, included the 
following instruments: 

 
Maximum Maximum

Maximum Percentage Investment in 
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One Issuer

Federal Agency Obligations 5 Years None None
U.S. Treasury Bills 5 Years None None
State of California Obligations 5 Years None None
Local Agency Bonds and Obligations 5 Years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 Days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - Selected Agencies 270 Days 40% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years 30% None
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 Year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 Days 20% None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 Years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) N/A None None  
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments authorized by debt agreements: Investments held by the bond fiscal agent (trustee) 
are governed by the provisions of the debt indenture agreement rather than the provisions of the 
Agency’s investment policy of the California Government Code. 
 
Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the 
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. 
 
Credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation 
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. Specific credit risk ratings for investment assets held for 
the Agency by the County of Yuba are provided in the County of Yuba’s annual financial report. 
 
Concentration of credit risk: The Agency does not have a policy that limits the amount that can be 
invested in any one issuer. A majority of the Agency’s investments are held with the County pool 
where the concentration of credit risk is not determinable. 
 
 

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

The accounts receivable consists of the following: 
 

2015 2014

Irrigation and gauging receivables 476,405$      135,803$      
Due from marina operations 82,739          89,054          
Due from Pacific Gas & Electric 12,179          16,196          

TOTALS 571,323$      241,053$      

Fiscal year ended June 30,

 
 

 
NOTE 4 LOANS RECEIVABLE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 
 

The loans receivable consists of the following at June 30, 2015: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Payments June 30, 2015

Yuba County RDA/County
Of Yuba as Successor Agency 937,455$      (40,434)$    897,021$      

North Yuba Water District 432,031        (51,892)     380,139        
Cordua Irrigation District 99,794         (17)            99,777         
Dry Creek Mutual Water Company 1,522,581     (83,710)     1,438,871     
City of Marysville Levee District 2,414,996     96,199$    2,511,195     
Camptonville Community Services District 92,992      92,992         

TOTALS 5,406,857$   189,191$   (176,053)$  5,419,995$   
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NOTE 4 LOANS RECEIVABLE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES – (Continued) 
 
The loans receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2014: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Payments June 30, 2014

Yuba County RDA/County
Of Yuba as Successor Agency 928,964$      8,491$      937,455$      

North Yuba Water District 481,800        (49,769)$    432,031        
Reclamation District No. 784 239              (239)          -               
Cordua Irrigation District 99,821         (27)            99,794         
Dry Creek Mutual Water Company 1,605,178     (82,597)     1,522,581     
City of Marysville Levee District 2,123,239     300,000    (8,243)       2,414,996     

TOTALS 5,239,241$   308,491$   (140,875)$  5,406,857$   
 

 

Regarding the loan to the Yuba County Redevelopment Agency, the state Redevelopment 
Dissolution Act (AB 1X 26) dissolved the Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012. On 
March 27, 2012, the Yuba County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2012-20 
designating the Board of Supervisors of the County of Yuba to serve as the successor agency 
of the Yuba County Redevelopment Agency. As a result of this legislation, the successor 
agency was required to obtain formal approval for the recognition of the obligation to repay 
outstanding debts. On May 27, 2012, the California Department of Finance issued a letter to 
the successor agency approving the obligation for repayment of the loan made by Yuba County 
Water Agency to the Yuba County Redevelopment Agency.  
 
Each loan accrues interest at a rate established by the Agency as agreed to in the originating 
loan agreement. Typically, the rate is based on an average of the interest rate paid by the 
County of Yuba, California Treasurer on the investment pool for the preceding 12 months. The 
interest rates were 0.768% to 4.00% and 0.970% to 4.00% at June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. 
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The details of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015

CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Water rights 85,835$           85,835$           
Land and land rights 2,841,991        2,841,991        
Construction in progress 4,461,036        3,035,699$      (4,126,326)$    3,370,409        

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 7,388,862        3,035,699        (4,126,326)      6,298,235        

General Fund:
Land and land rights 1,449               1,449               
Canals 4,605,454        4,605,454        
Construction in progress 24,434,751      2,844,060        (256,461)         27,022,350      

Total General Fund 29,041,654      2,844,060        (256,461)         31,629,253      

General Fund Power Systems:
Construction in progress 84,195             3,907,878        -                  3,992,073        

Total General Fund Power Systems 84,195             3,907,878        -                  3,992,073        

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING
DEPRECIATED 36,514,711      9,787,637        (4,382,787)      41,919,561      

CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production 219,322,472    3,077,740        222,400,212    
Electric plant acquisition 4,485,248        4,485,248        
Transmission equipment 1,411,076        448,305           1,859,381        
General plant 7,050,058        912,648           7,962,706        
Intangible assets 248,292           248,292           

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 232,517,146    4,438,693        -                  236,955,839    

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production 2,807,412        (2,411,295)      396,117           

General Fund:
Recreation facilities 1,516,201        1,516,201        
General plant 4,239,021        347,528           (23,492)           4,563,057        
Irrigation canals 17,213,643      230,265           17,443,908      

Total General Fund 22,968,865      577,793           (23,492)           23,523,166      

General Fund Power Systems:
General plant 33,272             -                  33,272             

Total General Fund Power Systems 33,272             -                  -                  33,272             
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING

DEPRECIATED 258,326,695    5,016,486        (2,434,787)      260,908,394    
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production (94,547,100)    (3,396,459)      (97,943,559)    
Electric plant acquisition (4,288,416)      (97,464)           (4,385,880)      
Transmission equipment (1,345,722)      (14,173)           (1,359,895)      
General plant (5,395,257)      (356,067)         (5,751,324)      
Intangible assets (230,956)         (230,956)         

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund (105,807,451)  (3,864,163)      -                  (109,671,614)  

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production (2,154,526)      (39,892)           1,815,304        (379,114)         

General Fund:
Recreation facilities (1,076,777)      (82,984)           (1,159,761)      
General plant (1,408,547)      (306,343)         23,492             (1,691,398)      
Irrigation canals (1,115,082)      (570,827)         (1,685,909)      

Total General Fund (3,600,406)      (960,154)         23,492             (4,537,068)      

General Fund Power Systems:
General plant -                  (11,090)           (11,090)           

Total General Fund Power Systems -                  (11,090)           -                  (11,090)           

TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (111,562,383)  (4,875,299)      1,838,796        (114,598,886)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 146,764,312    141,187           (595,991)         146,309,508    

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 183,279,023$  9,928,824$      (4,978,778)$    188,229,069$  
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
The details of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, are as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014

CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Water rights 85,835$           85,835$           
Land and land rights 2,841,991        2,841,991        
Construction in progress 654,219           4,233,845$      (427,028)$       4,461,036        

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 3,582,045        4,233,845        (427,028)         7,388,862        

General Fund:
Land and land rights 1,449               1,449               
Canals 4,605,454        4,605,454        
Construction in progress 36,529,522      5,215,055        (17,309,826)    24,434,751      

Total General Fund 41,136,425      5,215,055        (17,309,826)    29,041,654      

General Fund Power Systems:
Construction in progress -                  84,195             -                  84,195             

Total General Fund Power Systems -                  84,195             -                  84,195             

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING
DEPRECIATED 44,718,470      9,533,095        (17,736,854)    36,514,711      

CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production 218,895,443    427,029           219,322,472    
Electric plant acquisition 4,485,248        4,485,248        
Transmission equipment 1,411,076        1,411,076        
General plant 6,804,432        292,040           (46,414)           7,050,058        
Intangible assets 248,292           248,292           

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 231,844,491    719,069           (46,414)           232,517,146    

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production 2,807,412        2,807,412        

General Fund:
Recreation facilities 1,516,201        1,516,201        
General plant 3,533,909        718,708           (13,596)           4,239,021        
Irrigation canals 599,847           16,613,796      17,213,643      

Total General Fund 5,649,957        17,332,504      (13,596)           22,968,865      

General Fund Power Systems:
General plant -                  33,272             -                  33,272             

Total General Fund Power Systems -                  33,272             -                  33,272             
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING

DEPRECIATED 240,301,860    18,084,845      (60,010)           258,326,695    
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production (91,767,782)    (2,779,318)      (94,547,100)    
Electric plant acquisition (4,190,952)      (97,464)           (4,288,416)      
Transmission equipment (1,332,357)      (13,365)           (1,345,722)      
General plant (5,134,779)      (306,892)         46,414             (5,395,257)      
Intangible assets (225,707)         (5,249)             (230,956)         

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund (102,651,577)  (3,202,288)      46,414             (105,807,451)  

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production (2,051,184)      (103,342)         (2,154,526)      

General Fund:
Recreation facilities (993,794)         (82,983)           (1,076,777)      
General plant (1,166,258)      (255,117)         12,828             (1,408,547)      
Irrigation canals (272,841)         (842,241)         (1,115,082)      

Total General Fund (2,432,893)      (1,180,341)      12,828             (3,600,406)      

TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (107,135,654)  (4,485,971)      59,242             (111,562,383)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 133,166,206    13,598,874      (768)                146,764,312    

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 177,884,676$  23,131,969$    (17,737,622)$  183,279,023$  
  

 

East-side Canal Extension (Yuba Wheatland Canal Project) 
 
It is important to note that the East-side Canal Extension (Yuba Wheatland Canal Project) was 
the result of a contractual arrangement between the Agency and Wheatland Water District 
(WWD). The original agreement was executed on January 27, 2004, and was subsequently 
amended on February 13, 2007, and again on May 25, 2010. The agreement and subsequent 
amendments contained cost allocation, ownership, and payment provisions. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014, the Agency capitalized $16,613,796 in costs attributable to the 
project and began depreciation. These cumulative costs were previously included and reported 
as a component of Construction in Progress. 
 
On September 5, 2014, the Agency and WWD entered into an agreement whereby WWD will 
reimburse the Agency $1,394,080 for project costs related to improvements made within the 
WWD boundaries. The parties anticipate that this amount will be repaid over a thirty (30) year 
period with annual principal and interest payments due no later than each December 15th. 
WWD does have the option of reimbursing these costs over a shorter time period. Interest on 
the unpaid reimbursement balance will be at a rate equal to the average rate of return earned 
by the Agency on funds invested with the Treasurer of the County of Yuba. Under the 
agreement, WWD did agree to pay retroactive interest to December 31, 2010. As of June 30, 
2014, the Agency did record accrued interest receivable totaling $69,041. Upon full repayment 
by WWD, title to certain improvements will be transferred from the Agency to WWD. As of 
June 30, 2014, the undepreciated cost of these improvements totaled $7,881,523. 
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, WWD repaid the Agency $612,000, including 
interest and principal. As of June 30, 2015, the unreimbursed amount due to the Agency totaled 
$860,378. Interest paid during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, amounted to $77,033, with 
accrued interest totaling $1,265 was due as of June 30, 2015. At June 30, 2015, the Agency is 
reporting the principal payments received of $534,967 as a deposit liability in the accompanying 
financial statements. 
 
 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

 The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2015: 
 

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance Due within
July 1, 2014 Adjustments Adjustments June 30, 2015 one year

Net pension liability -$          4,025,990$  (1,083,752)$ 2,942,238$   

Total Long-Term Liabilties -$          4,025,990$  (1,083,752)$ 2,942,238$   -$          
 

 
NOTE 7 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

 
The accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following: 
 

2015 2014

Vendors 3,841,148$     2,730,930$     
Other 119,860          212,196          

TOTALS 3,961,008$     2,943,126$     

Fiscal year ended June 30,

 
 

 
NOTE 8 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Agency entered into a water transfer agreement 
whereby $30,900,000 was paid up front for the transfer of 480,000 acre feet of water. The water 
transfer was scheduled to span over a period of eight (8) years with 60,000 acre feet of water being 
transferred annually. The revenue is being recognized as the water is actually transferred. The 
remaining balance of transfer proceeds is reported as deferred income until recognition of revenue 
occurs.   
 
On December 5, 2014, Amendment No. 5 to the water transfer agreement was executed. This 
amendment extended the water transfer period through December 31, 2025. As a result of this 
amendment, the Agency received a $20 million prepayment toward future water transfers. The 
revenue will be recognized in future years as the water is actually transferred. At June 30, 2015, the 
$20 million is included in the deferred income total reported in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 
The Agency also records deferred income amounts for certain water sales and electric energy sales 
to PG&E. 
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NOTE 8 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Continued) 
 
The following is a summary of deferred income balances: 
 

2015 2014

Water transfer accord 27,725,000$    11,837,500$    

Electric energy sales 2,450,376       557,579          

TOTALS 30,175,376$    12,395,079$    

Fiscal year ended June 30,

 
 
 

NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
A. General Information About Pension Plan 

 
Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to 
participate in the Agency’s cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan 
(Plan) which is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and local 
government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full 
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS website.  
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members, who must be public 
employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one 
year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at 
age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability 
benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is the Optional Settlement 2W Death 
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law. The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) 
requires new benefits and member contributions as defined by PEPRA, that are hired after 
January 1, 2013. 
 
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows: 
 

Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 12.988% 6.25%  
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NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
A. General Information About Pension Plan (Continued) 

 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law 
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an 
annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change 
in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis 
as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Agency is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate 
of employees. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of 
pension expense for the Plan was as follows: 
 

Contributions - employer 477,668$          
Contributions - employee (paid by employer) 191,336             

 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Related to Pensions  
 
As of June 30, 2015, the Agency reported a net pension liability of $2,942,238 for its share 
of the net pension liability of the Plan. The Agency’s net pension liability for the Plan is 
measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of 
the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability for each Plan used 
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2013, rolled forward to June 30, 2014, using standard update procedures. The Agency’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Agency’s long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. The Agency’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2014, were as follows: 
 

Proportion - June 30, 2013 0.12287%
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.11905%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00382%  

 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Agency recognized pension expense of $356,791. 
At June 30, 2015, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

Pension contributions subsequent to 
measurement date 548,810$          

Adjustments due to differences in proportions -                   

Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments 997,337$          

Totals 548,810$          997,337$          
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NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  
 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions – Continued 

 
$548,810 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as 
follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2015 (255,711)$    
2016 (255,711)     
2017 (251,457)     
2018 (234,458)     
2019 -             

Thereafter -              
 
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013, actuarial 
valuations were determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Valuation date June 30, 2013
Measurement date June 30, 2014

Actuarial cost method
Entry-Age 

Normal Cost 
Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount rate 7.50%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll growth 3.00%
Projected salary increase (1) 3.3% - 14.2%
Investment rate of return (2) 7.50%
Mortality (3) CalPERS Table

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment.
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.
(3) 20 years of mortality improvement - Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  

 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the 
June 30, 2013, valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience 
study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the 
CalPERS website. 
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NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  
 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions – Continued 

 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% 
for the Plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the 
calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most 
likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount 
rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the 
current 7.50% discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation 
is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.50% will be applied to all plans 
in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in 
a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 
 
According to Paragraph 30 of GASB Statement No. 68, the long-term discount rate should 
be determined without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50% 
investment return assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative 
expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment 
return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65%. Using this lower 
discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension 
Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did 
not find it to be a material difference. CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial 
assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM) review cycle that is 
scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the discount rate will require 
Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to 
continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB Statement No. 68 
calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the 
materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as they have changed our 
methodology. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both 
short-term and long-term market return expectations, as well as the expected pension fund 
cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound 
returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11 - 60 
years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-
term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The 
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that 
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using 
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent 
to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter 
of one percent. 
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NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  
 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions – Continued 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate 
of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the 
discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 (a) Years 11+ (b)

Global equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global fixed income 19.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% (0.55%) (1.05%)

100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.  
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate – The following presents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as 
what the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

Discount rate 6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Net pension liability 5,153,653$   2,942,239$   1,106,977$    
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 
 

 
NOTE 10 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

 
In lieu of Social Security, the Agency also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan 
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan is administered by 
the ICMA Retirement Corporation. The plan, available to all regular employees at their option, 
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Agency contributes 
7.65% of covered salaries for each employee who does not participate in the 401(a) plan below. For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Agency contributed $205,168, and the employees 
contributed $284,709. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Agency contributed $209,987, 
and the employees contributed $282,449.  
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NOTE 10 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (Continued) 
 
On December 17, 2002, the Agency established an IRC Section 401(a) account with the ICMA 
Retirement Corporation. The Agency selects optional benefits through state statute and agency 
resolutions. The Agency contributes 7.65% of covered salaries for each employee who does not 
participate in the 457 plan above. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Agency contributed 
$134,812, and the employees contributed $111,666 to this plan. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2014, the Agency contributed $99,498, and the employees contributed $98,014 to this plan.  
 
 

NOTE 11 POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 
 
In addition to the pension benefits, the Agency provides certain health care benefits for retired 
employees through CalPERS. Substantially all of the Agency’s regular employees may become 
eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Agency. At 
June 30, 2015, thirteen (13) retired employees/survivor dependents met those eligibility 
requirements. At June 30, 2014, twelve (12) retired employees/survivor dependents met those 
eligibility requirements.  
 
Basis of Accounting 
Employees are not required to contribute to the plan. Employer contributions are recognized when 
due and when a formal commitment is made to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
 
Plan Description 
The Yuba County Water Agency’s Retiree Healthcare Plan is part of an aggregation of 
single-employer plans administered by the California Public Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust 
(CERBT) Fund. The Agency provides medical benefits to eligible retirees. Benefit provisions are 
established and may be amended by Agency labor agreements, which are approved by the 
Agency’s Board of Directors. On May 12, 2009, the Board approved a policy to pre-fund retiree 
health care benefits through contributions to the CERBT and authorized the agreement and election 
of the Agency to pre-fund other post-employment benefits through CalPERS. 
 
Funding Policy 
Future contribution requirements of plan members and the Agency will be established and 
amended as needed by the Agency Board. The required contribution will be based on projected 
pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with additional amounts to prefund benefits as determined 
annually by the Board. For  fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Agency contributed a 
total of $272,000 and $368,000, respectively. 
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NOTE 11 POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
The Agency’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based 
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The Agency is implementing 
GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on 
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of ten years. The following table shows the 
components of the Agency’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to 
the plan, and changes in the Agency’s net OPEB obligation: 
 
Annual required contribution 272,000$       
Contribution made (272,000)        

Net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended 6/30/15 -$              
 

The ARC was determined as part of a June 30, 2013, actuarial valuation. The ARC rate was 
13.75% of projected annual covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the 
Agency’s annual OPEB cost (expense) totaled $597,000. The OPEB Cost consists of three (3) 
components: Annual Required Contribution, interest earned on the Net OPEB Obligation, and 
any adjustments in the Net OPEB Obligation. The Agency’s Annual OPEB Cost, the 
percentage of Annual OPEB Cost contributed to the plan, and the Net OPEB Obligation as of 
June 30, 2015, were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Annual  Adjustment Of Net OPEB 
Year OPEB  Net OPEB Obligation

June 30 Cost Contribution Obligation (Asset)

2013 763,000$      (376,000)$     (1,412,000)$   (1,025,000)$   
2014 810,000        (368,000)       (1,155,000)    (713,000)       
2015 597,000        (272,000)       (683,000)       (358,000)       

 
Funded Status and Funding Process 
The funded status of the liability as per the most recent actuarial valuation of June 30, 2013, 
was as follows: 
 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 4,463,000$    
Actuarial value of plan assets contributed (4,461,000)     

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 2,000$          

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 99.96%

Projected covered payroll (active plan members) 3,813,000$    

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 0.05%

 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
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NOTE 11 POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
 
In the June 30, 2013, actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal (EAN) cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 6.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses), actual health care cost premiums for the year, payroll increases of 3.25%, and an 
inflation assumption of 3%. The EAN cost method spreads plan costs for each participant from 
entry date to the expected retirement date. Under the EAN cost method the plan’s normal cost 
is developed as a level percent of payroll over the participants’ working lifetime. The actuarial 
value of plan assets was $4,461,000. The plans unfunded actuarial accrued liability will be 
amortized using the flat dollar amount method over 10 years. 
 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
The schedule of funding progress presents trend information about whether the actuarial value 
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. Trend data is data is presented in the Required Supplementary Information section of 
this report. 
 
 

NOTE 12 POWER PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 

All electric power generated by the Operations and Maintenance Fund is sold to the Pacific Gas 
and Electric Company (PG&E) under the terms of a contract dated May 13, 1966, and expires 
in 2016. For the power received, PG&E pays $3,850,000 semi-annually for bond and interest 
and a variable amount for hydro operations. The Operation and Maintenance Fund received, 
from PG&E for operating expenses, a total of $14,479,668 and $14,646,917 for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  

 
All electric power generated through the General Fund Hydro Fund is also sold to PG&E under 
the terms of two Standard Offer #4 Contracts dated May 7, 1984, and expiring in 2016 and 
2019. For the power received, PG&E pays for the net energy output under the energy Payment 
Option 1 Forecasted Energy Prices of two megawatts for the Deadwood Power Plant, which 
was sold on October 21, 2014, and for the firm capacity of 130 kilowatts for the Mini-Hydro 
Power Plant. The General Fund Hydro Fund received payments totaling $283,933 and 
$185,111 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 13 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 

The Agency received from PG&E power revenues totaling $14,763,601 and $14,832,028 for 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. These revenue amounts 
represent 60.63% and 59.47% of total operating revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2015 and 2014, respectively. 
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NOTE 14 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Western Water v. Yuba County Water Agency and Western Aggregates 
The Agency is currently a defendant in the case Western Water v. Yuba County Water Agency 
and Western Aggregates. Western Water claims the Agency breached an agreement entered 
into between the parties in 1991. Generally, it is claimed that the Agency had an obligation to 
pay for water which was taken from an area commonly known as Yuba Goldfields. Trial in this 
matter began on January 23, 2012. Following the trial, the court ruled in favor of the Agency 
and denied all of the plaintiff’s claims. As a result, the Agency was awarded over one million 
dollars in attorney fees. Following Judgment being entered in favor of the Agency, Western 
Water filed an appeal. That appeal is currently pending. Given the appeal, the awarded 
attorney fees have not be received or accrued as of June 30, 2015. 
 
The Agency has filed a separate lawsuit against Western Water, asserting Western Water 
violated the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act. Western Water filed a Motion to Strike, which was 
denied. The ruling was appealed. Because of that, the action is stayed pending outcome of the 
appeal. 
 
Cordua Irrigation District v. Yuba County Water Agency 
On September 17, 2015, Cordua Irrigation District (CID) filed a lawsuit against the Agency, 
alleging that the Agency’s actions in not agreeing to and facilitating a proposed water transfer 
of water to certain State Water Project (SWP) contractors breached a water-supply contract 
between CID and the Agency, constituted a tortious interference with a contract between CID 
and those SWP contractors and violated certain rights claimed by CID. CID seeks at least 
$4,500,000 in damages from the Agency. The Agency denies that it breached its contract with 
CID, interfered with any other contract to with CID was a party or violated any of CID’s rights. 
The Agency intends to vigorously defend CID’s lawsuit. An adverse decision could result in the 
Agency being required to pay significant damages to CID. The potential future outcome of this 
lawsuit cannot be determined as of the date of these financial statements and no contingent 
loss provision has been recorded. 
 
Litigation 
The Agency is a party to claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. The 
Agency’s management and legal counsel are of the opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, 
arising from these claims will not have a material adverse impact on the financial position of the 
Agency. 
 
Grant Contingencies 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment. Any 
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the Agency. 
The amount(s), if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot 
be determined at this time, although the Agency expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 
 
 

NOTE 15 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Agency is exposed to property and liability claims for which commercial insurance has 
been purchased. There have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage 
compared to the prior year. Settlements have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past 
three fiscal years. 
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NOTE 16 RELICENSING 
 

The Agency has been working on the relicensing of its Power Projects as required by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). In connection with the relicensing, the Agency 
has incurred expenses, entered into service contracts, and established cash reserves to pay for 
anticipated costs. Costs incurred for the relicensing are being capitalized, in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 51, and will be amortized over the life of the new license once it has been 
issued by FERC. Total costs capitalized as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, amounted to 
$26,914,495 and $24,162,989, respectively. Total funds designated for the relicensing process, 
at June 30, 2015 and 2014, amounted to $1,132,789 and $1,358,579, respectively. The Agency 
did submit the final license application to FERC on April 28, 2014. The relicensing process will 
take several years to complete. The current FERC license expires on April 30, 2016. While the 
total cost of the relicensing cannot be determined, the Agency anticipates it will have sufficient 
resources to complete the relicensing process. 
 
 

NOTE 17 CONDUIT DEBT 
 
On July 22, 2008, the Agency entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement with the 
County of Yuba, California, for the creation of the Yuba Levee Financing Authority. The primary 
purpose of the agreement is to provide for financial assistance to facilitate improvements to the 
levee system in the County. On September 3, 2008, bonds totaling $78,370,000 were issued. 
This issue consisted of the Series A Revenue Bonds totaling $64,175,000, and Series B 
Taxable Revenue Bonds totaling $14,195,000.  
 
As part of this financing, the Agency did enter into an installment sale agreement whereby the 
Agency is required to fund 50% of the debt service payments. The Agency originally anticipated 
that levee fees collected would provide the necessary revenues to cover debt service. With the 
housing market crash there has been little real estate development in the Plumas Lake area. 
Beginning in 2015-16, it appears very unlikely that there will be enough fees collected to make 
the annual $4 million in debt service payments and the Yuba Levee Financing Authority and the 
County of Yuba have requested that the Agency pay the debt service payments required to the 
extent not funded by fee revenue. 
 
On October 30, 2014, the Agency entered into a debt service funding agreement, relating to the 
Yuba Levee Financing Authority Bonds, with the Yuba Levee Finance Authority (Authority) and 
the County of Yuba (County). The significant terms of the agreement are as follows: 
 
1. To the extent fee revenues are insufficient to pay debt service payments, the Agency agrees 

to pay all debt service payments required to be paid by the County for the period August 15, 
2015 through February 15, 2020. The Agency also agreed to pay all remaining required 
debt service payments during this time period. 

 
2. Under the agreement, debt service payments made by the Agency will be reimbursed to the 

Agency over time from fee revenue collected over the course of the development and 
buildout of the Plumas Lake Specific Plan Area and other areas protected by the Project 
levees. 

 
3. The terms of the agreement call for the Agency to be paid interest on funds provided for 

debt service payments.   
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NOTE 17 CONDUIT DEBT (Continued) 
 
4. No later than July 1, 2019, and every five years thereafter until full payment of the debt 

service obligation, the parties to the agreement will meet to (a) evaluate the status of 
development and buildout of the Plumas Lake Specific Plan area and other areas protected 
by the Project levees, the amount of fee revenue collections by the County from 2014 
through early 2020, the forecast for fee revenue and other County revenue and funds 
available for future debt service payments, and the Agency’s financial situation, and (b) 
discuss and negotiate in good faith regarding the potential extension of the Agency 
temporary debt service payment obligation under this specific agreement. If the parties 
agree to an extension, the extension will be memorialized by an amendment to this 
agreement, which will require the approval of the governing board of each party to the 
termination of this agreement. 

 
5. The Agency’s obligation to pay debt service payments expires on February 16, 2020, unless 

extended under the terms noted above. 
 
The Bond documents and the Official Statement related to this financing state that the 
obligation of the Agency to make installment payments does not constitute a debt of the 
Agency. As a result, none of the financial activity associated with this financing is reported in 
the accompanying financial statements of the Agency at this time. The County of Yuba is 
currently administering this debt obligation, and activity relating to the Yuba Levee Financing 
Authority is included in the annual financial report for the County. 
 
 

NOTE 18 GRANT AND PROJECT FUNDING PROVIDED TO THE COUNTY OF YUBA 
 

Each year, the Agency provides significant grant and project funding to the County of Yuba. 
The following is a summary of funds provided for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 
2014: 
 

2015 2014

Grants:   
Fish & Game 4,500$          4,500$          
Yuba County Fire Safe Program 18,000          18,000          
Yuba County OES 75,000           75,000          
Watershed Protection Plan 2,785            52,193          

Total Grant Funding 100,285        149,693        

Projects:
Yuba County Public Works Department 180,988        205,000        
Yuba County Flood Operations 27,579          38,492          
Yuba County Public Works Construction 179,255        375,000        
Marysville Road Improvement Project 1,200,000     

Total Project Funding 387,822        1,818,492     

Total Grant and Project Funding Provided 488,107$      1,968,185$    
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NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
The Agency’s current power purchase agreement with PG&E expires on April 30, 2016. On 
September 22, 2015, the Agency Board of Directors approve approved two (2) power purchase 
agreements with Shell Energy of North America for sales of Colgate and Narrows 2 electric 
energy and related products. These agreements will take the place of the PG&E agreement 
upon expiration. 
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Schedule I

Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.04728%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,942,238$       

Covered-employee payroll 3,763,577$       

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as
a percentage of covered-employee payroll 78.18%

Plan's fiduciary net position 8,647,935$       

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 82.75%

Valuation date      06/30/2013

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

As of June 30, 2015
Last 10 Years*

 
 

Notes to Schedule: 
 

Benefit Changes. The above amounts do not include any liability impact that may have resulted 
from plan changes which occurred after June 30, 2013, as they have a minimal cost impact. 
 
Changes in assumptions.  None 
 
* Fiscal year 2015 is the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown. 
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Schedule II

Contractually required contributions (actuarially
determined) 476,718$          

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions (550,718)           

Contribution deficiency (excess) (74,000)$           

Covered-employee payroll 3,763,577$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 14.63%

As of June 30, 2015
Last 10 Years*

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
Schedule of Pension Contributions

 
 

* Fiscal year 2015 is the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown. 
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Schedule III

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
Schedule of Funding Progress for

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a 

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Projected Percentage of
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b - a) (a / b) (c) ((b - a) / (c))

1/1/2009 -$            2,722,000$  2,722,000$  -           2,605,000$  104.49%
1/1/2011 2,268,000    3,766,000    1,498,000    60.22% 3,324,000    45.07%

6/30/2011 3,422,000    4,048,000    626,000      84.54% 3,544,000    17.66%
6/30/2013 4,461,000    4,463,000    2,000          99.96% 3,813,000    0.05%

Note:
1.  The above schedule is updated at the time each actuarial valuation is performed.
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Operation and General Hydroelectric General Fund Health
General Maintenance Fund Hydro Utility Power Systems RA

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2015 2014

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 50,883,303$       3,608,364$         1,425,255$         221,883$            20,000$             56,158,805$       39,193,760$       
Receivables:

Accounts receivable 559,144             12,179               571,323             241,053             
Taxes and interest receivable 89,060               2,393                 91,453               150,865             

Due from other units 5,050,546           252,407             41,557               5,344,510           1,176,876           
Due from other governments 931,887             931,887             983,238             
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 130,340             518,248             648,588             930,483             

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 57,644,280         4,379,019           1,481,384           -$                   221,883             20,000               63,746,566         42,676,275         

CAPITAL ASSETS, at cost:
Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land and water rights 1,449                 2,927,826           2,929,275           2,929,275           
Canal acquisitions 4,605,454           4,605,454           4,605,454           
Construction-in-progress 27,022,350         3,370,409           3,992,073           34,384,832         28,979,982         

Depreciable capital assets, net:
Utility plant and equipment 396,117             236,955,839       33,272               237,385,228       235,357,830       
Non-utility property 23,523,166         23,523,166         22,968,865         

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,537,068)          (379,114)            (109,671,614)      (11,090)              (114,598,886)      (111,562,383)      

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 50,615,351         -                    17,003               133,582,460       4,014,255           -                    188,229,069       183,279,023       

OTHER ASSETS:
Loans receivable from other

governmental entities 5,419,995           5,419,995           5,406,857           

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 5,419,995           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    5,419,995           5,406,857           

TOTAL ASSETS 113,679,626       4,379,019           1,498,387           133,582,460       4,236,138           20,000               257,395,630       231,362,155       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
CalPERS pension contributions 175,506             313,507             6,831                 52,966               548,810             

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 175,506             313,507             6,831                 -                    52,966               -                    548,810             -                    

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,461,991           1,423,371           36                     1,075,610           3,961,008           2,943,126           
Wages payable 170,141             170,141             124,915             
Accrued compensated absences 376,124             322,496             35,938               734,558             675,723             
Due to other units 182,830             12,635               15,236               5,113,809           20,000               5,344,510           1,176,876           
Due to other governments 348,362             348,362             
Deposit  - Wheatland Water District 534,967             534,967             

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,904,274           1,928,643           15,272               -                    6,225,357           20,000               11,093,546         4,920,640           

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Net pension liability - CalPERS 998,882             1,640,892           39,132               263,332             2,942,238           

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILTIES 998,882             1,640,892           39,132               -                    263,332             -                    2,942,238           -                    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,903,155           3,569,535           54,404               -                    6,488,689           20,000               14,035,784         4,920,640           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred income 27,725,000         2,450,376           30,175,376         12,395,079         
CalPERS pension expense 338,439             556,323             13,258               89,317               997,337             

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 28,063,439         3,006,699           13,258               -                    89,317               -                    31,172,713         12,395,079         

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 50,615,351         17,003               133,582,460       4,014,255           188,229,069       183,279,023       
Unrestricted 31,273,186         (1,883,708)          1,420,553           (6,303,157)          24,506,874         30,767,413         

TOTAL NET POSITION 81,888,537$       (1,883,708)$        1,437,556$         133,582,460$     (2,288,902)$        -$                   212,735,943$     214,046,436$     

Totals

ASSETS

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY UNIT

 JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2014
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Operation and General Hydroelectric General Fund Health
General Maintenance Fund Hydro Utility Power Systems RA

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2015 2014

Sale of electrical energy 14,479,668$     283,933$          14,763,601$       14,832,028$       
Water sales 9,588,078$         9,588,078           10,107,474         

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 9,588,078           14,479,668       283,933            -$                 -$                 -$                 24,351,679         24,939,502         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Hydropower generation 2,658,305         55,457             2,713,762           3,047,163           
Administration and general 509,107             4,526,985         79,903             1,468,946         6,584,941           5,799,624           
Maintenance 3,584,228         40,974             3,625,202           2,255,456           
Depreciation and amortization 960,154             39,892             3,864,163         11,090             4,875,299           4,485,971           

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,469,261           10,769,518       216,226            3,864,163         1,480,036         17,799,204         15,588,214         

NET INCOME/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 8,118,817           3,710,150         67,707             (3,864,163)        (1,480,036)        -                   6,552,475           9,351,288           

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets (269,501)           (269,501)            12,408               
Property taxes 430,326             430,326             400,668             
Interest income 449,561             8,332               104                  457,997             750,992             
Rental income 24,000               24,000               24,000               
Grants and reimbursements 1,113,077           1,113,077           1,405,413           
Miscellaneous income (expense) 8,763                 8,763                 5,000                 
Recreation and camping fees 262,649             262,649             280,409             
General administration (3,795,033)          (3,795,033)          (3,790,874)          
Recreation and irrigation (1,428,697)          (1,428,697)          (1,534,037)          
Special projects expense (1,314,028)          (1,314,028)          (3,205,110)          

TOTAL NON-OPERATING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES) (4,249,382)          -                   (261,169)           -                   104                  -                   (4,510,447)          (5,651,131)          

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION 3,869,435           3,710,150         (193,462)           (3,864,163)        (1,479,932)        -                   2,042,028           3,700,157           

TRANSFERS:
Transfers in 247,665             247,665             175,000             
Transfers out (247,665)           (247,665)            (175,000)            
Transfer of fixed assets (3,348,066)        3,348,066         

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS 247,665             (3,595,731)        -                   3,348,066         -                   -                   -                    -                    

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION:
Capital contribution - stream gauges 230,265             230,265             -                    

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION 230,265             -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   230,265             -                    

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4,347,365           114,419            (193,462)           (516,097)           (1,479,932)        -                   2,272,293           3,700,157           

NET POSITION, July 1 78,757,517         -                   1,678,670         134,098,557     (488,308)           -                   214,046,436       210,346,279       
Effect of change in accounting principle (1,216,345)          (1,998,127)        (47,652)            (320,662)           (3,582,786)          -                    

NET POSITION, July 1 - As Restated 77,541,172         (1,998,127)        1,631,018         134,098,557     (808,970)           -                   210,463,650       210,346,279       

NET POSITION, June 30 81,888,537$       (1,883,708)$      1,437,556$       133,582,460$    (2,288,902)$      -$                 212,735,943$     214,046,436$     

Totals

OPERATING REVENUES:

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY UNIT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
Chairman of the Board, General Manager, 
   and Members of the Board of Directors  
Yuba County Water Agency 
Marysville, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Yuba County Water Agency (the Agency) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Agency’s internal control. 
  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Agency’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
  
 

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
2080 Myers Street, Suite 3, Oroville, CA  95966-5341    (530) 533-3392    FAX (530) 533-2714 

 
 Davis W. Hammon, Jr., CPA 

 (1924-1989) 
 

 Stephen B. Norman, CPA • PFS 
 Stephen J. Herr, CPA 
James L. Duckett, CPA 
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Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Agency’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  
 

Davis Hammon & Co. 
 
December 22, 2015 
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	Home
	8:30 A.M. YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
	Agenda and background

	9:30 A.M. YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	ROLL CALL
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Administrative Services
	(041-0216) Adopt resolution declaring 2005 Ford F-250 (#14176) as surplus with a residual value of $2,149.90 and authorize Purchasing Agent to sell vehicle to Bi-County Ambulance for residual amount.   
	041-0216 Staff Report.tif (4 pages)


	Board of Supervisors
	(042-0216) Adopt resolution supporting inclusion of Pacific Coast Maritime Routes Study, including Feather, Yuba, and Bear Rivers, in eighth grade United States history curriculum.
	042-0216 Staff Report.tif (12 pages)


	Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
	(043-0216) Approve meeting minutes of February 9, 2016.
	043-0216 Staff Report.tif (4 pages)


	County Administrator
	(044-0216) Approve amendment to Cascade Software Systems Contract and authorize Chair to execute.
	044-0216 Staff Report.tif (4 pages)


	Health and Human Services
	(045-0216) Adopt resolution authorizing Director of Health and Human Services to execute new/ongoing contracts for fiscal year 2016/17 or multi-years and authorizing Chair to accept funds for stated periods.
	045-0216 Staff Report.tif (6 pages)


	Sheriff/Administrative Services
	(046-0216) Approve initial phase of Vanir Construction Management agreement for services on SB863 Yuba County Jail expansion project.
	046-0216 Staff Report.tif (2 pages)
	046-0216 Agreement.tif (16 pages)



	SPECIAL PRESENTATION
	(047-0216) Present proclamation recognizing Martin Griffin for dedicated services to Yuba County. (No background material)

	PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
	COUNTY DEPARTMENTS
	Administrative Services
	(048-0216) Approve two acquisition agreements for purchase of 520 and 683 square feet from Mid Valley Recovery and Yuba Street Ventures, respectively, for new Sheriff Facility located at 720 Yuba Street, authorize Chair to execute, and authorize Chair to 
	048-0216 Staff Report.tif (18 pages)


	Auditor/Controller
	(049-0216) Approve repayment agreement between County and City of Marysville for fees owed due to State Audit Traffic Fees, authorize Chair to execute, and cancel the repayment agreement for property tax administration fee considering the obligation paid 
	049-0216 Staff Report.tif (10 pages)


	Community Development and Services
	(050-0216) Direct staff to initiate Proposition 218 process to propose increase assessment for County Service Area No.14 (Camp Far West) and set a public hearing date for April 26, 2016 to consider adjustment and tabulate ballots. (Ten minute estimate).
	050-0216 Staff Report.tif (8 pages)


	County Administrator/Health and Human Services
	(051-0216) Receive report on current efforts to address homeless issues in Yuba County and provide direction as appropriate. (Estimate twenty minutes).
	051-0216 Staff Report.tif (4 pages)


	County Administrator
	(052-0216) Receive Second Quarter Financial Report; and Authorize midyear budget transfers in the total amount of $787,549 which includes Capital Outlay Funds in the amount of $848,562 and General Contingency Funds in the amount of $212,236;and Approve Pe
	052-0216 Staff Report.tif (28 pages)



	ORDINANCES AND PUBLIC HEARINGS
	(053-0216) Public Hearing - Hold public hearing, count ballots to consider proposed change to assessment for County Service Area No. 59, and absent a majority vote protest, adopt resolution establishing new assessment effective July 1, 2016 for maintenanc
	053-0216 Staff Report.tif (10 pages)


	CORRESPONDENCE
	(054-0216) Notice from California Regional Water Quality Control Board regarding meeting February 18, 2016, for Olivehurst Public Utility District Wastewater Treatment Facility consideration of NPDES Permit Renewal.
	054-0216 Correspondence A.tif (2 pages)

	(055-0216) Notice from California American Lung Association stating State of Tobacco Control report release date February 3, 2016.
	055-0216 Correspondence B.tif (2 pages)

	(056-0216) Notice from California Governor's Office of Emergency Services declaring Yuba County a contiguous disaster area, resulting from economic impacts delaying commercial Dungeness Crab Season and closure of commercial Rock Crab Fishery beginning Nov
	056-0216 Correspondence C.tif (4 pages)

	(057-0216) Notice from Sutter-Yuba Mosquito and Vector Control District regarding notification of Public Health Pesticide Application to waters for mosquito control to prevent mosquito-borne diseases. 
	057-0216 Correspondence D.tif (2 pages)

	(058-0216) Independent audit report for Yuba County Water Agency for periods ending June 30, 2014 and 2015.
	058-0216.pdf (53 pages)


	BOARD AND STAFF MEMBERS’ REPORTS
	CLOSED SESSION
	 Pending litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(4) - One Case
	2:00 P.M. Personnel pursuant to Government Code §54957(b)(1) – Public Appointment/Agricultural Commissioner Interviews

	ADJOURN
	Land Use & Public Works Committee - (Supervisors Griego and Abe - Alternate Supervisor Nicoletti) 
	(059-0216) Consider resolution approving closure of McGanney Lane at SR 20 - Community and Development Services. (Ten minute estimate)
	059-0216 Staff Report.tif (4 pages)




